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Finance — Special Projects

SUBJECT: Acceptance of City of Guadalupe Financial Statements for Fiscal
Year ended June 30, 2018.

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council receive and accept the City of Guadalupe
Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018
along with the Independent Auditor’s Report.

BACKGROUND

An audit of the City’s accounting records for fiscal year 2017-18 has been performed by Badawi
and Associates, Certified Public Accountants.

The City received an unqualified audit opinion which indicates the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City for the period under audit.

The Independent Auditor’s Report, dated July 26, 2019 will be discussed at the meeting. This
discussion will include the basic financial information, the notes (pages 40-84) and the
Findings/Recommendations (pages 100-103).

FISCAL IMPACT

There are no fiscal impacts resulting from the audit.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Financial Statements for Year Ended June 30, 2018
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-' BADAWI&ASSOCIATES

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Guadalupe
Guadalupe, California

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Guadalupe, California (City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contro] relevant to the preparation and fair

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we €xpress no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

Address: wl <t 15400 (=g e » Phone: - S * Fax:



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Guadalupe

Guadalupe, California

Page 2

Opinions

In our opinion, the financia] statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia] respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2018, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Inanagement’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of the City’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability, schedule of plan contributions, and schedule of changes
in total other post-employment benefits on Pages 5-18 and 86-91, be presented to supplement the basic

to the basic financial statements as a whole,



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Guadalupe

Guadalupe, California

Page 3

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the City will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the City continues to suffer from a
significant deficit fund balance in the Genera] Fund. In addition, the General Fund has a large balance
of interfund loans payable. There are doubts about the General Fund’s ability to repay the interfund
loans payable without having a significant impact on the City’s operation. These conditions raise doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern, Management's plans regarding those matters are also

described in Note 15. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 26, 2019,
On our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial eporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance,

Bl &M—-Az

Badawi and Associates
Certified Public Accountants
Oakland, California

July 26, 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

INTRODUCTION

showing percentage changes,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

® Total assets of the City at the close of the most recent fiscal year ended at about $23 million with
an overall increase of about $247,000 from the prior year. Governmental activities ended at over
$11 million and experienced a decrease in assets of about $224,000. Business-type activities
increased assets by over $472,000, ending the year at over $12 million in assets. Total primary
government assets exceeded liabilities by over $16 million.

governmental activities by about $100,000 and decreased for business-type activities by just under
$123,000. The City experienced an overall decrease in liabilities of almost $25,000.



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

® The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information
about the City’s overall financial status.

® The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City government, reporting the City’s
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

The basic financial statements also include notes that provide additional information essential to
understanding the data contained in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

® Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic Services are included here, such as police, fire
public works, community development, parks and recreation and general government.

® Business-type activities — Certain services provided by the City are funded by customer fees. Among
these are water and sewer services, solid waste and transit services.

Fund Financial Statements

segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund financial statements provide more detailed
information about the City’s largest funds, not the City as a whole. The City has 19 funds that are
considered governmental, four funds that are considered proprietary, and one fund that is considered
fiduciary.



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

—

The City has three types of fund financial statements:

Governmental funds - Governmental funds tell how general government services such as police, fire and
public works were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. Most of the
City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) short-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, and (2) the remaining year-end balances available for spending. Because this
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements,
reconciliations that explain the relationship (or differences) between governmental funds and
governmental activities follow the governmental funds statements.

generally reported in proprietary funds, Proprietary fund statements, like the government wide

statements, provide short-term and long term financial information about the activities of the City that

law. The successor agency activity is accounted for in a private Ppurpose trust fund.

government-wide and fund financial statements.



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENTS

e

This section provides analysis of the government-wide financial Statements including long-term and short-
term information about the City’s overall financial condition. The following tables address the financial
results of the City as a whole.

City of Guadalupe
Summary of Net Position

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Total
Activities Activities Government Percent
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 Change
Assets
Current Assets $ 3,071,737 $ 2,887,660 $ 3,550,801 3 2,553,660 $ 6,622,538 ¢ 5,441,320 21.7%
Noncurrent Assets 8,267,223 8,675,689 8,508,476 9,033,811 16,775,699 17,709,500 -5.3%
Total Assets 11,338,960 11,563,349 12,059,277 11,587,471 23,398,237 23,150,820 1.1%
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pensions 956,387 715,686 144,207 107,912 1,100,594 823,598
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 576,623 746,737 547,463 619,843 § 1,124,086 $§ 1,366,580 -17.7%
Noncurrent Liabilities 3,315,111 3,046,822 2,457,005 2,507,996 5,772,116 5,554,818 3.9%
Total Liabilities 3,891,734 3,793,559 3,004,468 3,127,839 6,896,202 6,921,398 -0.4%
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pensions 236,714 345,716 2,306 18,740 239,020 364,456
Net Position
Netinvestmentin
capital assets 8,060,036 8,603,987 6,406,863 6,836,583 $§ 14,466,899 $ 15,440,570 -6.3%
Restricted 2,173,381 2,569,084 147,100 147,100 2,320,481 2,716,184 -14.6%
Unrestricted (2,066,518) (3,033,311) 2,642,747 1,565,121 576,229 (1,468,190) -139.2%

$ 8,166,899 $ 8,139,760 3 9,196,710 $ 8,548,804 $ 17,363,609 & 15,688,564 4.0%

Analysis of net position

Total net position of the primary government increased approximately $675,000 at the close of the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2018. Total assets increased about $247,000, deferred pension outflows increased
$277,000, total liabilities decreased $25,000 and deferred pension inflows decreased $125,000. The
following analysis of governmental and business-type activities provides more detailed information
explaining these changes.

Governmental activities:



Cityof G uadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENTS - continued

BE]

Governmental Activities - continued

Deferred Pension outflows increased almost $241,000. Deferred Pension Plan information is located in
Note 8 to the financials,

Total liabilities increased about $100,000 mainly due to an increase in interfund loans.

Deferred Pension inflows decreased $109,000. Detailed Pension Plan information is located in Note 8 to the
financials.

Business-type activities:

Total assets increased about $472,000 dye to an increase in cash and investments along with a decrease in
depreciable capital assets.

obligations.

Deferred Pension inflows decreased just over $16,000. Detailed Pension Plan information is located in Note
8 to the financials,



City of Guadalupe

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENTS - continued

]

The City’s net position increased by over $726,000 durin

changes in net position is summarized.

Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operatinggrants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions
General revenye:

Sales tax

Property tax

Utility users tax

Other taxes

Interestincome

Other revenues

Total revenues

Program Expenses
Public safety
Transportation
Leisure, culture and social services
Community development
General government
Business-type activities
Interest on long-term debt
Total expenses

Transfers
Change in net position
Net position - beginning ofyear
Prior year restatement
Net Position -beginningofyea r, restated

Net position - end ofyear

City of Guadalupe
Changesin Net Position

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 ang 2017

(In thousands)

g the current fiscal year. Information about

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

$ 1,244,915 $ 483,480 $ 4,986,515 $ 4,313,926 ¢ 6,231,430 $ 4,796,906
1,039,852 1,126,341 1,039,852 1,126,341
106,261 - 106,261
548,960 466,362 548,960 466,362
1,097,768 1,096,803 1,097,768 1,096,803
412,481 393,256 412,481 393,256
453,358 468,164 453,358 468,164
128,129 108,696 128,129 108,696
231,722 204,907 231,722 204,907
5,263,446 4,348,009 4,986,515 4,313,426 10,249,961 8,661,435
2,666,953 2,322,259 2,666,953 2,322,259
1,166,690 465,043 1,166,690 465,043
179,926 157,454 179,926 157,454
806,060 744,506 806,060 744,506
870,667 1,293,858 870,667 1,293,858
3,730,527 3,283,493 3,730,527 3,283,493
11,070 9,025 11,070 9,025
5,701,366 4,992,145 3,730,527 3,283,493 9,431,893 8,275,638
510,084 491,867 (510,084) (491,867
72,164 (152,269) 745,904 538,066 818,068 385,797
8,139,760 8,292,029 8,548,804 8,010,738 16,688,564 16,302,767
(45,025) (97,998 (143,023)
8,094,735 8,292,029 8,450,806 8,010,738 16,545,541 16,302,767

$ 8,166,899 $ 8,139,760 $ 9,196,710 $ 8,548,804 $17,363,609 $16,688,564

10

Total
Percent

Change

29.9%
-7.7%
100.0%

17.7%
0.1%
4.9%

-3.2%

17.9%

13.1%

18.3%

14.8%
150.9%
14.3%
8.3%
-32.7%
13.6%
22.7%
14.0%

112.0%
2.4%
-100.0%
1.5%

4.0%



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENTS - continued

Analysis of the changes in net position;

Total government-wide revenues of the primary government increased $1.6 million, over 18 percent from
the prior year, and total expenses increased almost $1.15 million or @ 14 percent increase. These changes
are discussed in more detail below.

]

Governmental Activities:

Total revenues for governmental activities increased about $915,000 from the prior year. Total
expenditures increased over $709,000.

Revenue

Charges for Services increased just over $761,000 primarily due to increased permit activity from the
Pasadera development. Sales tax increased about $83,000 as a result of increased sales activity and the
addition of 3 % percent local sales tax Measure in recent years. Additional investment income resulted from
the increase in cash on hand along with increases in Utility Users tax and Property tax.

Expenses

General government decreased about $423,000 primarily due to cost cutting measures, unfilled
management positions and reductions in capital expenditures.

Expenses
Business-type activity expenses increased $447,000 mainly due to increased service activity related to the
Pasadera development. In addition, capital outlay expense for the Tognazzini Well and Lift Station caused

11



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUND STATEMENTS

Governmental Funds:

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable résources. Total fund balance for governmental funds increased by almost $122,000
during fiscal year 2018, Total revenues for governmental funds increased $915,000, total expenditures for
governmental funds increased about $800,000. Reasons for these changes are discussed in more detail
below.

General Fund

Total General Fund revenues increased $630,000 in the current year primarily due to increased sales tax
and permit fees. The increase related to almost 100 new homes permitted for the Pasadera development in

emergency mutual aid assistance resulting from area fires,

Total General Fund expenditures decreased about $70,000 this year. This is primarily due to salary savings
from General government and unfilled management positions.

Measure A

previous year.

Other Governmental Funds

12



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUND STATEMENTS - continued

Enterprise Funds:

percent. Total operating éxpenses increased by about $447,000 or 14 percent over prior year. The
discussion below provides a detailed explanation for each business-type fund.

Water Fund

development.

Solid Waste Fund

Solid Waste revenye increased about $14,000 due to the re-negotiated contract for the city’s waste hauler.
The service provider is required to pay a surcharge until the current deficit of $-68,537. The Solid Waste
fund incurred zero éxpenses in 2018. The City anticipates the negative fund balance will be eliminated to be

approximately September 2019.

Transit Fund

13



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

|

A detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the year ended June 30, 2018 is bresented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements.

The following summarizes the original and final budget compared with actual results for 2017-18:

Original Final

General Fund Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues $ 3,506,360 $ 3,506,360 $3,935,042 S 428,682
Expenditures {4,087,178) (4,087,178) (3,929,250) 157,928
Other Fina ncing Sources 617,850 617,850 510,960 (106,890)

Changein fund balances 37,032 37,032 516,752 479,720
Fund balance - beginning of year (684,624) (684,624) (684,624) -
Fund balances (deficit) - end of year S (647,592) $ (647,592) $ (167,872) S 479,720

" Revenues were about $429,000 higher than estimated which resulted from a rise in Building Permit
revenue of over $200,000 relative to the Pasadera development. The City experienced increases in

* Expenditures were almost $158,000 less than estimated primarily due to general reduction in
personnel costs and unfilled Mmanagement positions.

CAPITAL ASSETS

14



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

A summary of the City’s capital assets at June 30, 2018 follows:

Capital Assets, Governmental Business-type
Net of Accumulated Depreciation Activities Activities Total
Land S 343,131 s 248,425 § 591,556
Infrastructure 4,071,429 5,627,530 9,698,959
Buildings and Improvements 3,600,440 1,785,124 5,385,564
Vehicles 207,186 594,695 801,881
Equipment 45,037 35,289 80,326
Construction in Progress 217,413 217,413
$ 8,267,223 & 8,508,476 $ 16,775,699

Major capital asset expenditures during the fiscal year include:

* Facilities Improvements

® Pavement upgrades

" Water system improvements
®  Wastewater improvements

Property, plant and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight line method over the following

estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructyre 10-50
Buildings and Stryctures 20-50
Improvements other than buildings 20-50
Equipment 5-15

15



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

—

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018
Governmental Activities:

Land S 343,131 § ) S 343,131
Buildings and improvements 5,244,508 5,244,508
Accumulated depreciation (1,500,945) {143,123) (1,644,068)
Vehicles 1,187,781 107,091 1,294,872
Accumulated depreciation (993,033) (94,653) (1,087,686)
Equipment 547,320 24,529 571,849
Accumulated depreciation {500,838) (25,974) (526,812)
Infrastructure 6,998,887 6,998,887
Accumulated depreciation (2,651,122) (276,336) (2,927,458)

Total governmental ca pital assets, net ¢ 8,675,689 $ (408,466) $ - S 8,267,223

Business-Type Activities:

Land S 248,425 S 248,425
Construction in progress 412,218 264,785 (459,590) 217,413
Buildings and improvements 9,869,371 - 9,869,371
Accumulated depreciation (7,453,491) {630,756) (8,084,247)
Vehicles 1,681,713 6,498 (6,498) 1,681,713
Accumulated depreciation {949,011) (138,007) (1,087,018)
Equipment 529,516 529,516
Accumulated depreciation (472,870) (21,357) (494,227)
Infrastructure 6,998,888 459,590 7,458,478
Accumulated depreciation (1,830,948) (1,830,948)

Total governmental capital assets,net S 9,033,811 ¢ (518,837) ¢ (6498) S 8,508,476

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows.
Governmental activities:

Public safety $ 90,139
Transportation 25,082
Leisure, cultural & social services 32,310
Community development 361,295
General government 31,260
Total governmental activities depreciation expense S 540,086

Business-type activities:

Water S 183,128
Waste water 474,982
Transit 109,030
Total business-type activities depreciation expense S 767,140

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the basic financial statements,

16



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2018, the City of Guadalupe had almost $2.8 million in long-term debt outstanding as
summarized below:

Long-Term Debt Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Sewer Bonds S 16,000 S S 16,000
OPEB - -
Certificates of participation 1,968,065 1,968,065
Compensated absences 249,701 249,701
Loans payable to successor agency

trust fund - -
Note payable -
Insurance claim payable 62,071 78,639 140,710
Capital leases payable 191,187 133,548 324,735

S 518,959 $ 2,180,252 $ 2,699,211

Long-term debt governmental activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balance Balance

Governmental activities: June 30, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018
Sewer bonds S 32,000 $ 16,000 S 16,000
OPEB - 0
Compensated absences 255,743 6,042 249,701
Insurance loan payable 115,195 20,697 73,821 62,071
Capital leases obligations 262,053 70,866 191,187

Total S 664,991 S 20,697 $ 166,729 S 518,959

Long-term debt business-type activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balance Balance
Business-Type Activities: June 30, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018
Certificates of participation S 2,028,858 S 60,793 S 1,968,065
Loans payable to Successor
Agency Trust Fund - - -
Insurance loan payable 89,602 10,963 78,639
Capital lease obligations 168,371 - 34,823 133,548
Total 5 2,286,831 S - S 106,579 $ 2,180,252

Additional information about the City of Guadalupe’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 to the basic
financial statements.

17



City of Guadalupe
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

L ]

On July 11, 2017 the Council adopted the fiscal year 2017-18 budget (Resolution No. 2017-28). The General
Fund portion of that budget contains a balanced budget.

Fiscal Outlook. Revenues continue to increase and sustain the City’s general fund. In fiscal year 2017-18
the General fund recouped a 75 percent prior year negative fund balance and ending the year at $-167,872,
from $-684,624.. The primary goal is to reduce the ending deficit of almost $-168,000 and begin the
preservation of future reserves. The City’s revenue continues to increase as the Pasadera Development
added 100 homes this fiscal year and expects 150 over the next two fiscal years with build out expected
within eight years. The Pasadera Development increases Building Permit and related construction fee
revenues. Other revenues showing steady increases are Sales Tax, Business License, Utility Users Tax and
Franchise Fees. In addition, Property taxes are expected to rise over time as a positive outcome of the new
Pasadera development. It must be recognized that Building fees are one-time revenue sources and the City
needs to look at finding alternatives to sustain recurring revenue streams including a new sales tax measure
in 2020.

CITY OF GUADALUPE ACTIVITIES

funding is used for street maintenance projects. In FY 2017-18 the City continued with water and
Wwastewater infrastructure improvements with the Tognazzini Well and Lift station projects to add a back-up
water source for the City.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT TEAM

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the City of Guadalupe - Attn: Carolyn Galloway-Cooper, 918 Obispo
Street, Guadalupe, CA 93434,

18
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City of Guadalupe

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 2,664,603 $ 1,288,936 $ 3,953,539
Accounts receivable 704,158 840,451 1,544,609
Prepaid expenses 229,863 877,915 1,107,778
Loans receivable 16,612 - 16,612
Internal balances (543,499) 543,499 -
Total current assets 3,071,737 3,550,801 6,622,538
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 343,131 465,838 808,969
Depreciable, net 7,924,092 8,042,638 15,966,730
Total capital assets 8,267,223 8,508,476 16,775,699
Total noncurrent assets 8,267,223 8,508,476 16,775,699
Total assets 11,338,960 12,059,277 23,398,237
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 956,387 144,207 1,100,594
Total deferred outflows of resources 956,387 144,207 1,100,594
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 168,326 216,823 385,149
Cash overdraft - 99,818 99,818
Accrued salaries and wages payable 110,151 21,484 131,635
Interest payable - 39,990 39,990
Deposits payable 77,916 35,987 113,903
Unearned revenue 110,010 - 110,010
Long-term debt - due within one year 110,220 133,361 243,581
Total current liabilities 576,623 547,463 1,124,086
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 2,655,209 410,114 3,065,323
Total OPEB liability 251,163 - 251,163
Long-term debt - due in more than one year 408,739 2,046,891 2,455,630
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,315,111 2,457,005 5,772,116
Total liabilities 3,891,734 3,004,468 6,896,202
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 236,714 2,306 239,020
Total deferred inflows of resources 236,714 2.306 239,020
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 8,060,036 6,406,863 14,466,899
Restricted for:
Street maintenance 1,403,342 - 1,403,342
Other capital projects 422,777 - 422,777
Community development 170,293 - 170,293
Other purposes 176,969 147,100 324,069
Total restricted 2,173,381 147,100 2,320,481
Unrestricted (2,066,518) 2,642,747 576,229
Total net position $ 8.166.899 $ 9,196,710 $ 17,363,609
_ =2/ _——

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.



City of Guadalupe

Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Total
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General Government 870,667 $ 383,751 $ 95,868 % - % 479,619
Public Safety 2,666,953 382,724 258,309 - 641,033
Transportation 1,166,690 - 675,675 106,261 781,936
Leisure, cultural and social services 179,926 6,580 - - 6,580
Community development 806,060 471,860 10,000 - 481,860
Interest on long-term debt 11,070 - - - -
Total governmental activities 5,701,366 1,244,915 1,039,852 106,261 2,391,028
Business-type activities:
Water 1,830,621 2,204,906 - - 2,204,906
Wastewater Treatment 1,329,740 2,207,055 - - 2,207,055
Solid Waste - 77,128 - - 77,128
Transit 570,166 497,426 - - 497,426
Total business-type activities 3,730,527 4,986,515 - - 4,986,515
Total primary government 9,431,893 $ 6,231,430 § 1,039,852 ¢ 106,261 % 7,377,543

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Utilities Uses Tax
Other taxes

Total taxes

Investment earnings
Other

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year, as restated

Net position - end of year

24
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and Changes in Net Position

Net (Expense) Revenue

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

% (391,048) $ - 5 (391,048)
(2,025,920) - (2,025,920)
(384,754) - (384,754)
(173,346) - (173,346)
(324,200) - (324,200)
(11,070) - (11,070)
(3,310,338) - (3,310,338)

- 374,285 374,285

- 877,315 877,315

- 77,128 77,128

- (72,740) (72,740)

- 1,255,988 1,255,988

(3,310,338) 1,255,988 (2,054,350)
1,097,768 - 1,097,768
548,960 - 548,960

412,481 - 412,481

453,358 - 453,358
2,512,567 - 2,512,567
128,129 - 128,129

231,722 - 231,722

510,084 (510,084) -
3,382,502 (510,084) 2,872,418
72,164 745,904 818,068

8,094,735 8,450,806 16,545,541

$ 8,166,899 9,196,710 % 17,363,609
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City of Guadalupe
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2018
Major Funds
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Measure A Gas Tax Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 522318 % 1,156,669 $ 49308 % 936,308 % 2,664,603
Accounts receivable 465,233 78,600 113,193 47,132 704,158
Prepaid expenses 204,117 11,022 - 14,724 229,863
Interfund loans receivable - - 62,732 420,833 483,565
Loans receivable - - - 16,612 16,612
Total assets $ 1,191,668 $ 1,246,291 $ 225,233 $ 1,435,609 $ 4,098,801
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities;
Accounts payable 108,979 29,782 21,937 7,628 168,326
Accrued salaries and wages payable 103,904 6,247 - - 110,151
Deposits payable 77,916 - - - 77,916
Unearned revenue 110,010 - - - 110,010
Interfund loans payable 958,731 - - 68,333 1,027,064
Total liabilities 1,359,540 36,029 21,937 75,961 1,493,467
Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - - 106,261 - 106,261
Total deferred inflows of resources - - 106,261 - 106,261
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenses 204,117 11,022 - 14,724 229,863
Restricted for:
Street maintenance - 1,199,240 - 204,102 1,403,342
Other capital projects - - 97,035 325,742 422,777
Community development - - - 170,293 170,293
Public safety - - - 143,966 143,966
Utility infrastructure - - - 5,777 5,777
Debt service - - - 27,226 27,226
Committed to:
Lighting and landscape - - - 476,825 476,825
Assigned to:
Capital projects - - - 49,764 49,764
Unassigned (371,989) - - (58,771) (430,760)
Total fund balances (167,872) 1,210,262 97,035 1,359,648 2,499,073
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 1,191,668 $ 1,246,291 $ 225,233 $ 1,435,609 $ 4,098,801

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Guadalupe

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position were different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities were not current financial resources. Therefore, they
were not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Except for the internal service funds
reported below, the capital assets were adjusted as follows:

Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total capital assets

Unavailable revenue recorded in the fund financial statements resulting from activities in which
revenues were earned but funds were not available are reclassified as revenues in the Government-
Wide Financial Statements.

Employer contributions for pension were recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds.
However, in the Government-Wide Financial Statement these contributions are deferred.

In the Government-Wide Financial Statement certain pension amounts are deferred and amortized
over a period of time, however, in the governmental funds no transactions are recorded.

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they were not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Net pension liability

Net OPEB liability

Long term liabilities - due within one year
Long term liabilities - due in more than one year

Total long-term liabilities

Net Position of Governmental Activities

29
See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

$ 2,499,073

343,131
7,924,092

8,267,223

106,261

286,621

433,052

(2,655,209)
(251,163)
(110,220)
(408,739)

(3,425,331)

$ 8,166,899
—_—




City of Guadalupe

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Fines and penalties

Revenues from other agencies
Charges for current services
Interest

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General Government
Public Safety

Transportation

Leisure, cultural and social services

Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year, as restated

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements,

Major Funds
Other Total
Governmental  Governmental
General Measure A Gas Tax Funds Funds

2,118,556 480,581 149,131 $ 131,041 $ 2,879,309
943,370 - - 139,615 1,082,985
22,485 - - - 22,485
370,296 5,907 - 280,113 656,316
171,123 - - 2,520 173,643
100,441 10,771 2,825 14,093 128,130
208,771 186 - 5,360 214,317
3,935,042 497,445 151,956 572,742 5,157,185
1,015,496 - - - 1,015,496
2,308,767 - - 268,047 2,576,814
- 404,384 733,791 3,433 1,141,608

142,616 - - 5,000 147,616
366,343 - 78,422 444,765
36,500 - - 84,541 121,041
50,058 - 20,808 16,000 86,866
9,470 - - 1,600 11,070
3,929,250 404,384 754,599 457,043 5,545,276
5,792 93,061 (602,643) 115,699 (388,091)
510,960 - - 6,800 517,760
- - - (7,676) (7,676)

510,960 - - (876) 510,084
516,752 93,061 (602,643) 114,823 121,993
(684,624) 1,117,201 699,678 1,244,825 2,377,080
$ (167,872) $ 1,210,262 % 97,035 $ 1359648 $ 2,499,073
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City of Guadalupe

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities were different because:

Governmental funds reported capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Government-Wide Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets was allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This was the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period.

Depreciation expense on capital assets was reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, but
they did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense was not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Accrued compensated leave payable was an expenditure in governmental funds, but the accrued payable
decreased compensated leave liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position,

Current year employer OPEB contributions are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds,
however these amounts are reported as a reduction to Tota]l OPEB Liability on the Government-Wide
Statement of Net Position. The amount of OPEB contribution is:

OPEB expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Repayment of bond principal and other long-term debts was an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduced long-term liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Insurance claims payable
Long-term debt repayments

Re-assessing insurance claims liabilities results in an expenditure (revenue) on the Government-Wide
Statement of Activites, but is not recognized in the fund financial statements . This amount reflects a
decrease (increase) in the amount of insurance claims payable.

Revenues that are not considered to be available are reported as unavailable revenues in the governmental
funds, however, these amounts are recognized in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities. This
amount represents the change in unavailable revenues.

Current year employer pension contributions are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds,
however, these amounts are reported as a deferred outflow of resources in the Government-Wide Statement
of Net Position.

Pension expense is recorded as incurred in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, however, pension
expense is not recognized in the governmental funds.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities
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See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

121,993

131,620

(540,086)

6,042

206,667

(33,706)

73,821
86,866

(20,697)

106,261

286,621

(353,238)

72,164




City of Guadalupe

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2018
Enterprise Funds
Wastewater Solid
Water Treatment Waste Transit Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 444,576 $ 522,300 $ - 8 322,060 1,288,936
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 315,140 462,617 10,361 52,333 840,451
Prepaid expenses 845,955 31,960 - - 877,915
Interfund loan receivable, current portion 51,501 51,501
Total current assets 1,657,172 1,016,877 10,361 374,393 3,058,803
Noncurrent assets:
Interfund loan receivable, net of current portion 491,998 - - - 491,998
Land 29,464 218,961 - - 248,425
Work in progress - 217,413 - - 217,413
Buldings, structures and improvements 5,493,067 4,818,550 - 17,344 10,328,961
Vehicles 80,073 119,108 - 1,482,532 1,681,713
Equipment 392,348 126,558 - 10,610 529,516
Infrastructure - 6,998,888 - - 6,998,888
Less accumulated depreciation (3,016,930) (7,454,385) - (1,025,125) (11,496,440)
Total noncurrent assets 3,470,020 5,045,093 - 485,361 9,000,474
Total assets 5,127,192 6,061,970 10,361 859,754 12,059,277
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 62,096 82,111 - - 144,207
Total deferred outflows of resources 62,096 82,111 - - 144,207
32
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City of Guadalupe

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2018
Enterprise Funds
Wastewater Solid
Water Treatment Waste Transit Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities;
Accounts payable 94,565 76,598 - 45,660 216,823
Cash overdraft - - 99,818 - 99,818
Deposits payable 35,987 - - - 35,987
Accrued wages and benefits 10,807 10,677 - - 21,484
Interest payable 22,588 17,402 - - 39,990
Current portion of insurance claim payable 14,158 12,691 - - 26,849
Cutrent portion of capital lease obligations 16,053 28,315 - - 44,368
Current portion of certificates of participation 40,304 21,840 - - 62,144
Total current liabilities 234,462 167,523 99,818 45,660 547,463
Noncurrent liabilities:
Insurance claim payable 27,310 24,480 - - 51,790
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 26,587 62,593 - - 89,180
Certificates of participation, net of current portion 1,084,394 821,527 - - 1,905,921
Net pension liability 176,599 233,515 - - 410,114
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,314,890 1,142,115 - - 2,457,005
Total liabilities 1,549,352 1,309,638 99,818 45,660 3,004,468
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 992 1,314 - - 2,306
Total deferred inflows of resources 992 1,314 - - 2,306
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,810,684 4,110,818 - 485,361 6,406,863
Restricted for debt service 88,522 58,578 - - 147,100
Unrestricted 1,739,738 663,733 (89,457) 328,733 2,642,747
Total net position $ 3,638,944 $ 4,833,129 $ §89,457! $ 814094 $ 9,196,710

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Guadalupe

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Enterprise Funds

Wastewater Solid
Water Treatment Waste Transit Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Water sales $ 199822 $ - % - % - 1,998,262
Standby charges 38,645 - - - 38,645
Connection fees 78,915 44,679 - - 123,594
Sewer service charges - 1,591,235 - - 1,591,235
Refuse service charges - - 77,128 - 77,128
Revenues from other agencies 1,545 218,416 - 425,134 645,095
Other revenues 87,539 352,725 - 72,292 512,556
Total opeljaling revenues 2,204,906 2,207,055 77,128 497,426 4,986,515
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services 271,799 296,519 - - 568,318
Maintenance and operations 1,300,590 516,599 - 461,136 2,278,325
Depreciation 206,108 474,982 - 109,030 790,120
Total operating expenses 1,778,497 1,288,100 - 570,166 3,636,763
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 426,409 918,955 77,128 (72,740) 1,349,752
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest expense (52,124) (41,640) - - (93,764)
Transfers out (280,596) (194,496) - (34,992) (510,084)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (332,720) (236,136) - (34,992) (603,848)
Change in net position 93,689 682,819 77,128 (107,732) 745,904
NET POSITION
Beginning of year, as restated 3,545,255 4,150,310 (166,585) 921,826 8,450,806
End of year $ 3638944 $ 4833129 § (89,457) § 814,094 $ 9,196,710

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements,



City of Guadalupe
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACT! IVITIES:

Cash received from customers

Cash received from connection fees

Cash received from standby charges and other agencies
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services

Cash paid to employees and related benefits

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Internal activity - cash paid to (received from) other funds for interfund loan payments

Net transfers

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net change in insurance payable

Net changes in capital lease obligations

Principal payments on certificates of participation
Interest payments on certificates of participation

Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - End of year

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION:

Cash and investments
Cash overdraft

Total

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by {used in) operating achivities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deferred outflows pensions
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Deposits payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows pensions

Total adjustments

Net cash p

ided by (used in) operating activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements,

Enterprise Funds
Wastewater Solid
Water Treatment Waste Transit Total

$ 2,049487 $ 1912170 § 74,272 § 551,456 § 4,587,385

78,915 44,679 - 123,594

39,332 - - 39332
{1,244,909) (476,471) - (445,630) (2,167,010)
(265,034) (290,086) - - (555,120)

657,791 1,190,292 74,272 105,826 2,028,181

(170,166) - - (170,166}
(280,596} (194,496) - (34,992) (510,084)
(450,762) (194,496} - (34,992) {680,250)

(5,616) (5,348) - (10,%4)

(10,895) (23,927) (34,822)

(38,952) (21,840) - (60,792)

(52,124) (41,640) - - (93,764)

(164,352) {100,433) - - (264,785)
(271,939} (193,188) - - {465,127)

(64,910) 802,608 74,272 70,834 882,804

509,486 (280,308) (174,090} 251,226 306,314

$ 444,576 § 522,300 § (99,818) $ 32,060 $ 1,189,118
_— _——

$ 444,576 § 522,300 3% $ 322,060 1,288,936
- - (99,818) - (99,818)

$ 444576 $ 522,300 $ (99818) $ 32,060 $ 1,189,118
_ _——

$ 426,409 $ 918,955 § 77,128 § (72,740) § 1,349,752

206,108 474,982 - 109,030 790,120

(45,958) (250,206) (2,856) 54,030 (244,990)

(22,463) {5,635) - - (28,098)

(15,628) (20,667) - - (36,295)

78,144 45,763 - 15,506 139,413

8,786 - - 8,786

2,440 713 - 3153

27,031 35,743 - - 62,774

(7,078) 9,356) - = (16,434)

231,382 271,337 (2,856) 178,566 678,429

$ 657,791 § 1,190,292 § 74,272 § 105826 $ 2,028,181
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City of Guadalupe

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Fund
June 30, 2018
Private-Purpose
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,155,894
Cash with fiscal agent 333,366
Accounts receivable 101,736
Property held for resale 222,482
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 163,360
Total assets 1,976,838
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding 92,886
Total deferred outflows of resources 92,886
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 83,297
Interest payable 142,831
Unearned revenue 757,073
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 258,026
Due after one year 4,552,870
Total liabilities 5,794,097
NET POSITION
Held in trust for other governments $ (3,724,373)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Guadalupe
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2018

ADDITIONS:

Property taxes
Revenue from other agencies

Other revenues

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Program expenses
Administration expenses
Interest on long-term liabilities
Cost of debt issuance

Depreciation

Total Deductions

Change in net position

NET POSITION:
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Private-Purpose

Trust Fund

$ 516,433
82,685

58,598

657,716

108,276
90,000
190,037
282,899
9,900

681,112

(23,39)

(3,700,977)

$ (3,724,373)
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City of Guadalupe
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Guadalupe, California (City) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting
policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Guadalupe (the City) was incorporated on August 3, 1946. The City is a general law city
under the laws of the State of California and operates under a Council-Administrator form of
government. The City provides the following services: public safety (police and fire), construction and
maintenance of highways and streets, sanitation, culture and recreation, public improvements,
planning, zoning and general administration. Enterprise funds, operated in a manner similar to a
private business, include water, wastewater, solid waste, and transit.

The City has defined its reporting entity in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and 61. These statements
provide guidance for determining which organizations, functions and activities of a government should
be included in the general purpose financial statements.

The criteria for inclusion in the basic financial statements are generally based upon the ability of the
City to exercise oversight responsibility over such organizations, functions and activities. Oversight
responsibility is generally defined as the existence of financial interdependency and/or the ability to
appoint governing boards, to designate management, to significantly influence operations, to approve
operating budgets or to control day to day activities.

The accompanying financial statements include all activities and reporting entities over which the City
exercises oversight responsibility. Effective January 31, 2012, the Community Redevelopment Agency of
the City of Guadalupe (the Agency) was dissolved through the Supreme Court decision on Assembly
Bill 1X26. This action impacted the reporting entity of the City that previously had reported the Agency
as a blended component unit. See Note 14 for additional information on the dissolution and reporting of
the Agency as a Private Purpose Trust Fund.

In determining the financial reporting entity for the City of Guadalupe, the following governmental unit
has met the criteria for inclusion in the City's financial statements.

Guadalupe Public Financing Authority

The Guadalupe Public Financing Authority (the Authority) was established in 2000, and is a separate
government entity under the laws of the State of California. The purpose of the Authority is to provide
financing for the construction and acquisition of selected City facilities. The City Council of the City of
Guadalupe and the Board of Directors of the Authority are legally separate boards; however, they share
a common membership. Activities of the Authority are accounted for in the applicable City
governmental or enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Authority, as
it is included in the accompanying financial statements as a blended component unit.
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City of Guadalupe
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
A. Reporting Entity, Continued

Other Governmental Agencies .
Other governmental agencies provide various levels of services to residents of the City, either entirely
or partially. The entities include, but are not limited to, the State of California, the County of Santa
Barbara, as well as several school districts. Each of these agencies has an independently elected
governing board or is dependent on an independently elected governing board other than the City
Council of the City of Guadalupe.

The City has no ability to appoint or control the management of any of these entities and is not
responsible for any operating losses or debts incurred. As a result of the above analysis, financial
information for these agencies is not included within the scope of this report.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity with its own self-balancing set of accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or
expenses. These funds are established for the purpose of carrying out specific activities or certain
objectives in accordance with specific regulations, restrictions or limitations, Governmental resources
are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be
spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on the primary government and its blended component units. The effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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City of Guadalupe
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

These financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets, deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, and liabilities, including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets, and long-term
liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities
presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the
period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liabilities are
incurred.

Certain types of transactions reported as program revenues for the City are reported in three categories:

» Charges for services
* Operating grants and contributions
 Capital grants and contributions

internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of
Activities, internal fund transactions have been eliminated; however, those transactions between
governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. The following interfund activities
have been eliminated:

*  Due to/from other funds
» Transfers in/out

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements including all NCGA Statements and
Interpretations currently in effect.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net
position as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the government-wide financial
statements. The City has presented all major funds that meet specific qualifications.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Governmental Fund Financial Statements, Continued

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the

related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they
have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds
of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or
giving equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenues from property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Other revenues susceptible to accrual include other taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest, and
charges for services.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the
terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and
unrestricted net position may be available to finance program expenditures/expenses. The City’s policy
is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenues if necessary.

The City reports the following funds as major governmental funds of the City.

General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with governmental activities that are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

Measure A Special Revenue Fund accounts for the activities associated with maintaining, improving or
constructing roadways, bridges and bicycle and pedestrian bridges, safe routes to school
improvements, storm damage repair for transportation facilities, roadway drainage facilities, and
landscaping maintenance.

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund accounts for the activities associated with any street or road purpose as
defined in California code section S&H 2103, 2104, 2105, 2106, 2107, 2107.5, 2182, and 7104; which
includes snow removal, engineering cost and administrative expense, undistributed engineering
cost and administrative expense, snow grooming, heavy rainfall and storm damage and
maintenance or reconstruction (Guidelines Relating to Gas Tax Expenditures for Cities and
Counties, August 2015, page 3).
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Governmental Fund Financial Statements, Continued

The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Change in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds.

A column representing internal service funds is also presented in these statements. However, internal
service balances and activities have been combined with the governmental activities in the Government-
Wide Financial Statements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included
on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are
recognized in the period in which a liability is incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City reports the Water, Sewer, Solid Waste and Transit funds as proprietary funds of the City.

Water Fund: This enterprise fund accounts for the operation of the City’s water utility, a self-supporting
activity, which renders a service on a user charge basis to residents and businesses.

Wastewater Treatment Fund: This enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the City’s wastewater
treatment plant. The fund accounts for the operation of the City’s sewer utility, a self-supporting
activity, which renders a service on a user charge basis to residents and businesses.,

Solid Waste Fund: This enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the City’s solid waste collection and
disposal services, a self-supporting activity, which renders service on a user charge basis to residents
and businesses.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements, Continued

Transit Fund: This enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the City’s transit service within the
City and surrounding areas.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary fund financial statements consist of a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, Fiduciary funds include a private purpose trust fund and an agency

. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The proprietary funds’
“deposits” in the City-wide cash management pool are, in substance, demand deposits and are,
therefore, considered cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Disclosures (Amendment of GASB-No.
3), certain disclosure requirements for Deposits and Investment Risks were made in the following areas:
* Interest Rate Risk

*  Credit Risk
o Overall
o Custodial Credit Risk
o Concentrations of Credit Risk

In addition, other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and
investments, highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end, and other disclosures.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and
Jor External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one year or less at time
of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. The City
categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on
the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs. The City does not have any investments that are measured using Level
3 inputs.

The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California entitled Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) which has invested a portion of the pooled funds in Structured Notes and
Asset-Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the
State of California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to the change in interest rates.

Cash equivalents are considered amounts in demand deposits and short-term investments with a
maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City and are presented as “Cash and
Investments” in the accompanying Basic Financial Statements.

The City considers all pooled cash and investments (consisting of cash and investments and restricted
cash and investments) held by the City as cash and cash equivalents because the pool is used essentially
as a demand deposit account from the standpoint of the funds. The City also considers all non-pooled
cash and investments (consisting of cash with fiscal agent and restricted cash and investments held by
fiscal agent) as cash and cash equivalents because investments meet the criteria for cash equivalents
defined above.

D. Restricted Cash and Investimments

Certain restricted cash and investments are held by fiscal agents for the redemption of bonded debt, for
acquisition and construction of capital projects, and to meet bond indenture debt reserve requirements.
Cash and investments are also restricted for deposits held for others within the enterprise funds.

E. Capital Assets

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date contributed. The
City’s policy is to capitalize all capital assets with costs exceeding $5,000 and with useful lives exceeding
one year.

With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the City has recorded all its public domain
(infrastructure) capital assets, which include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks,
drainage systems, and lighting systems.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
E. Capital Assets, Continued

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life
of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each fiscal year represents that fiscal year’s

pro rata share of the cost of capital assets. GASB Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with

limited useful lives be depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is provided using the
straight line method which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and
the result is charged to expense each fiscal year until the asset is fully depreciated.

The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets.

Vehicles 5 - 10 years
Buildings and Improvements 20 - 35 years
Equipment 5 - 15 years
Infrastructure 10 - 50 years

F. Interest Payable

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, interest payable on long-term debt is recognized as the
liability is incurred for governmental fund types and proprietary fund types.

In the Fund Financial Statements, proprietary fund types recognize the interest payable when the
liability is incurred.

G. Long-Term Debt
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the appropriate activities.

Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

Bonds payable is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs, except

any portion related to prepaid insurance costs, are recognized as an expense in the period incurred.
Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund financial statements do not present long-term debt. As such, long-term debt is

shown in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide

Statement of Net Position.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
G. Long-Term Debt, Continued

Fund Financial Statements, Continued

Bond premiums and discounts are recognized during the current period as other financing sources or
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as

debt service expenditures. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources.

Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements use the same principles as those used in the

Government-Wide Financial Statements.

H. Property Taxes

California Constitution Article XIII A limits the combined property tax rate to one percent of a
property’s assessed valuation. Additional taxes may be imposed with voter approval. Assessed value is
calculated at one hundred percent of a property’s fair value, as defined by Article XIII A, and may be
increased no more than two percent per year unless a change in ownership occurs. The state legislature
has determined the method of distributing the one percent tax levy among the various taxing

jurisdictions.

Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have been levied, and collected
within sixty days of fiscal year-end. Property tax assessment and collection is administered by the

County of Santa Barbara.

Property taxes are billed and collected as follows:

Secured
Valuation/Lien Date(s) January 1
Levy Date(s) September 1
Due Date(s) November 1 (50%)
February 1 (50%)
Delinquency Date(s) December 10 (Nov.)
April 10 (Feb.)

L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Unsecured
January 1

January 1
Upon Billing

August 31

In addition to assets, the statement of net position (balance sheet) will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not

be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

L Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, Continued
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position (balance sheet) will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
Tesources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

J. Net Position
Government-Wide Financial Statements
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position are classified in the following categories:
Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated

depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of the assets,

Restricted - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of governments.

Unrestricted - This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment in
capital assets” or “restricted net position” as defined above.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is
available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net position first.

K. Fund Balances
Fund Financial Statements

In February 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54). The new classifications of
fund balances are as follows:

Non-spendable Fund Balances

This component consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable
form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
K. Fund Balances, Continued

Restricted Fund Balances

This component consists of amounts that have constraints placed on them either externally by third-
parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments) or by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the City to
assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and
includes legally enforceable requirement (compelled by external parties) that those resources be used

only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

Committed Fund Balances

This component consists of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the City’s highest level of decision making authority which includes the
City Municipal Code, Ordinances and Resolutions. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the City removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action

(City Municipal Code, Ordinance and Resolution) it employed previously to commit those amounts.

Assigned Fund Balances

This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Such intent should be expressed by the City Council
or its designated officials to assign amounts to be used. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned

amounts can be removed with no formal Council actions.

Unassigned Fund Balance

This component consists of amounts that have not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific

purposes.

Hierarchy of Expenditures to Classify Fund Balance Amounts

The City has formally adopted a spending policy regarding the order in which restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balances are spent when more than one amount is available for a specific
purpose. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) as they
are needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) are available for use it
is the City’s policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are

needed.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
L. Compensated Leave Payable

In compliance with GASB Statement No. 16, the City has established a liability for accrued sick leave
and vacation in relevant funds. For governmental funds, the current liability appears in the respective
funds. All vacation paid is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds
financial statements. This liability is set up for current employees at their current rates of pay. If sick
leave and vacation are not used by the employee during the term of employment, compensation is
payable to the employee at the time of retirement. Such compensation is calculated at the employee’s
prevailing rate at the time of retirement or termination. Each fiscal year, an adjustment to the liability is
made based on pay rate changes and adjustments for the current portion. The General Fund is primarily
responsible for the repayment of the governmental portion of compensated absences.

M. Pension

The City recognizes a net pension liability, which represents the City’s proportionate share of net
pension liability reflected in the actuarial reports provided by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan). The net pension liability is measured as of the City’s prior
fiscal year-end. Changes in the net pension liability are recorded, in the period incurred, as pension
expense or as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature
of the change. The changes in the net pension liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of resources
or deferred outflows of resources (that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs and
differences between expected or actual experience) are amortized over the weighted average remaining
service life of all participants in the respective pension plan and are recorded as a component of pension
expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s CalPERS
Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. Projected earnings on pension investments are recognized as a
component of pension expense.

N. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
City’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to / deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. Generally
accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
N. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB), Continued

Valuation Date July 1, 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Measurement Period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

O. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, as prescribed by the GASB and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

P. New Pronouncements

In 2018, the City adopted new accounting standards in order to conform to the following Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statements:

» GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions - The objective of this statement is to address reporting by governments that provide
other postemployment benefits (OPEB) to their employees and for governments that finance
OPEB for employees of other governments. The City restated its beginning net position as part of
implementation of this statement.

» GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements - The objective of this statement is to
improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by
providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a
beneficiary of the agreement. The requirements of this statement did not apply to the City for the
current fiscal year.

> GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2018 - The objective of this statement is to address practice
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB
Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending
component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and other postemployment
benefits (OPEB). There was no effect on net position as a result of implementation of this
statement.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT ING POLICIES, Continued

P. New Pronouncements, Continued

» GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues - The objective of this statement is to
improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only
existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are placed in an
irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves
accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes
to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this statement

did not apply to the City for the current fiscal year.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool for all funds. Certain restricted funds that are held and
invested by independent outside custodians through contractual agreements are not pooled. These

restricted funds include cash and investment held by trustees.

The following is a summary of cash and investments at June 30, 2018:

Government-Wide Statement of Net Position Fund Financials
Fiduciary Funds
Govemmental ~ Business-Type Statement of
Activities Activities Total Net Position Total
Cash and investments $ 2,664,603 $  1,288936 $ 3,953,539 $ 1,155,894 $ 5109433
Cash overdraft - (99,818) (99,818) - (99,818)
Total cash and Investments 2,664,603 1,189,118 3,853,721 1,155,894 5,009,615
Restricted cash and investments - - - 333,366 333,366
Total cash and Investments and
restricted cash and investments $ 2,664,603 $ 1,189,118 $ 3,853,721 $ 1489260 § 5342981

A. Summary of Cash and Investments
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Cash and investments:

Deposits $ 229,728
Petty cash 800
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 4,740,751
Common stock 38,336
Total cash and investments $ 5,009,615
_
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

B. Deposits

The California Government Code (Code) Section 53652 requires California banks and savings and loan
associations to secure the City’s cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. The Code states that
collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral
superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in the
City's name.

The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City’s cash deposits, California
law also allows institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a
value of 150% of the City’s total cash deposits.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds required to
be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled
cash and investments is allocated to the various funds based on the period-end cash and investment
balances. Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related
fund.

C. Investments

Under the provisions of the City’s investment policy, and in accordance with the Code, the following
investments are authorized:

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentageof = Investmentin
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
Securities of the Unites States Government, 5 years N/A N/A
or its agencies
Certificates of deposit (or time deposits) 5 years N/A N/A
placed with commercial banks and /or
savings and loan companies
Negotiable certificates of deposit 5 years N/A N/A
Commercial paper 5 years N/A N/A
Money market funds rated "AAAm" or "AAAmg" 5 years N/A N/A
by Standard & Poor's Corporation
Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) 5 years N/A N/A
Repurchase agreements 5 years N/A N/A
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
C. Investments, Continued

Investments are stated at fair value using the aggregate method in all funds, resulting in the following
investment income in all funds:

Interest and dividend income $ 30,990
Unrealized loss in changes in fair value of investments (8,051)
Total investment income $ 22,939

The City’s portfolio value fluctuates in an inverse relationship to any change in interest rate,
Accordingly, if interest rates rise, the portfolio value will decline. If interest rates fall, the portfolio
value will rise. The portfolio for year-end reporting purposes is treated as if it were all sold. Therefore,
fund balance must reflect the portfolio’s change in value. These portfolio value changes are unrealized
unless sold. Generally the City's practice is to buy and hold investments until maturity dates.
Consequently, the City’s investments are carried at fair value.

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The City’s

Structured Notes - are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow
characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more
indices and/or have embedded forwards or options.

Asset-Backed Securities - the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their purchasers
to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments
from a pool of mortgages (such as Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or credit card receivables.

As of June 30, 2018, the City had $4,740,751 invested in LAIF, which had invested 2.67% of the pool
investment funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities as compared to 2.89% in the previous
year. The LAIF fair value factor of 0998126869 was used to calculate the fair value of the investments in
LAIF.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

D. Risk Disclosures
Interest Risk: Interest rate risk is the market value fluctuation due to overall changes in the interest rates.
It is mitigated by limiting the average maturity of the City’s portfolio not to exceed three years.
Investments held in the City Treasury grouped by maturity date at June 30, 2018, are shown below:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Investment 12 Months 13 to 24 More Than
Type Totals Or Less Months 24 Months

LAIF $ 4,740,751  $ 4,740,751 $ - $ -
Common stock 38,336 38,336 - -
Total $4,779,087 $4,779,087 $ - $ -

recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where
applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the
actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type.

At June 30, 2018, the City’s deposits and investments were rated as follows:

Minimum Exempt  Rating as of Fiscal Year-End

Legal from Not
Investment Type Amount Rating Disclosure Rated
State Pool $ 4,740,751 N/A $ - % 4,740,751
Common stock 38,336 N/A - 38,336
Total $ 4,779,087 $ - % 4,779,087
—_

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. None of the City’s investments were subject to custodial
credit risk.

E. Investment Valuation

Investments (except money market accounts that are included as part of restricted cash and
investments) are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements, are
those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the
statement of net position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized
based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs
are significant unobservable inputs.
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2. CASH AND INV ESTMENTS, Continued
E. Investment Valuation, Continued

Investments’ fair value measurements at June 30, 2018 are described below:

Fair Value Measurement Using:

Investment Type Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments subject to leveling:
Common stock $ 38336 $ 38,336 -
Total investments subject to leveling 38336 $ 38,336 $ -
Investments not subject to leveling:
State Pool 4,750,751
Total investments $ 4,789,087
ﬁ
3. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
A. Interfund Loans Receivable
At June 30, 2018, the City had the following interfund loans:
Loans From
Non- Major
S Governmental
@ Funds Gas Tax Water Fund Total
<
o
= General Fund $ 352,500 $ 62,732 $ 543,499 $ 958,731
Non-Major Governmental Fund 68,333 - - 68,333
Total $ 420,833 $ 62,732 $ 543,499 $ 1,027,064

continued operations. The purpose of the Library Fund interfund loan was to pay the library lease
payments, which will be supported through development fees in future years.
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3. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, Continued
A. Interfund Loans Receivable, Continued
As of June 30, 2018, future minimum payments on the General Fund loans are as follows:

General Fund

2019 146,733
2020 95,668
2021 107,334
2022 119,000
2023 130,666
2024-2028 359,330
$ 958,731

The Library Fund does not have a set payment schedule.

B. Transfers

Interfund transfers are used to move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt
service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due and to move unrestricted fund
revenues to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as matching funds for various
grant programs. Interfund transfers to the General Fund are for the variable cost allocation plan for
services provided to other funds of the City.

At June 30, 2018, the City had the following transfers in/out which arose in the normal course of

operations:
Transfer In
Non-Major
General Governmental
Transfer Out Fund Funds Total
Non-Major Governmental
Funds $ 876 $ 6800 § 7,676
Water Fund 280,596 - 280,596
Wastewater Treatment Fund 194,496 - 194,496
Transit Fund 34,992 - 34,992
Total $ 51090 $ 6800 $ 517,760
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4. LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The City has made various loans under Community Development Block Grants to qualified
homeowners and businesses. Under the terms of the business loans, repayments are due in monthly
installments through 2021. Under the terms of the homeowner agreements, repayments of the loans are

At June 30, 2018, the aggregate maturities of the City’s business loans and notes receivable were as
follows:

For the Year Ending June 30, Business Loans
2019 $ 3,868
2020 5,158
2021 1,268
Total $ 10,294
_

The homeowner loans receivable amount of $6,318 does not have a fixed repayment schedule.
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS
A, Government-Wide Financial Statements

The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets for the governmental activities during the

fiscal year:
Balance Balance
July 1,2017 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2018
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 343131 - 8 - % - $ 343,131
Construction in progress - - - - -
Total non-depreciable assets 343,131 - - - 343,131
Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvements 5,244,508 - - - 5,244,508
Vehicles 1,187,781 107,091 - - 1,294,872
Equipment 547,320 24,529 - - 571,849
Infrastructure 6,998,887 - - - 6,998,887
Total depreciable assets 13,978,496 131,620 - - 14,110,116
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 1,500,945 143,123 - - 1,644,068
Vehicles 993,033 94,653 - - 1,087,686
Equipment 500,838 25,974 - - 526,812
Infrastructure 2,651,122 276,336 - - 2,927,458
Total accumulated depreciation 5,645,938 540,086 - - 6,186,024
Total depreciable assets, net 8,332,558 (408,466) - - 7,924,092
Total capital assets $ 8675689 ¢ (408,466) $ - $ - $ 8267223

Depreciation expense by program for capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

General government $ 31,260

Public safety 90,139

Transportation 25,082

Leisure, cultural & social services 32,310

Community development 361,295

Total depreciation expense $ 540,086
—_—
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

A. Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

The following is a summary of cha

nges in the capital assets for business-type activities during the fiscal

year:
Balance Balance
July 1,2017 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30,2018
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 248425 $ - $ - $ - $ 248,425
Construction in progress 412,218 264,785 - {459,590) 217,413
Total non-depreciable assets 660,643 264,785 - {459,590) 465,838
Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvements 9,869,371 - - - 9,869,371
Vehicles 1,681,713 6,498 (6,498) - 1,681,713
Equipment 529,516 - - - 529,516
Infrastructure 6,998,888 - - 459,590 7,458,478
Total depreciable assets 19,079,488 6,498 6,498) 459,590 19,539,078
Less accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 7,453,491 630,756 - - 8,084,247
Vehicles 949,011 138,007 - - 1,087,018
Equipment 472,870 21,357 - - 494,227
Infrastructure 1,830,948 - - - 1,830,948
Total accumulated depreciation 10,706,320 790,120 - - 11,496,440
Total depreciable assets, net 8,373,168 (783,622) (6,498) 459,590 8,042,638
Total capital assets $ 9,033,811 $ (518,837) § (6,498) % - $ 8,508,476

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Water
Wastewater
Transit

Total depreciation expense

B. Governmental Fund Financial Statements

$ 206,108
474,982

109,030
$ 790,120
_
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT
A. Governmental Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2018, governmental activities long-term liabilities activity was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30,2018 One Year

Sewer bonds $ 32000 - $ (160000 3 16,000 $ 16,000
Capital lease obligations 262,053 - (70,866) 191,187 73,125
Insurance claims payable 115,195 20,697 (73,821) 62,071 21,095
Compensated absences 255,743 - (6,042) 249,701 -
Total $ 664,991 $ 20497 $ (166,729) $ 518959 g 110,220
Sewer Bonds

Principal payments on the 1971 Sewer Bonds Series B and the 1978 Sewer Bonds are due on April 1st
each year with interest due semi-annually at 5% per annum. The bonds mature in April 2019. These
payments are made to the Farmers Home Administration, the purchaser of the bonds. At June 30, 2018,
the principal balance outstanding was $16,000.

The annual debt service requirements on the Sewer Bonds are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 16,000 $ 100 $ 16,100
Total $ 16,000 $ 100 $ 16,100
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT
A. GovemmentalActivities, Continued
Capital Lease Obligations

Th
Amortization on the assets leased is included in depreciation expense. At June 30, 2018, future
minimum payments for governmental capital lease obligations were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2019 $ 73,125

2020 73,125

2021 41,517

2022 3,420
Present value of minimum lease payments 191,187
Less current portion (73,125)
Long-term principal obli gations $ 118,062

Compensated absences in the governmental funds are generally liquidated by the General Fund ona
pay as you go basis.

B. Business-Type Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2018, business-type activities long-term liabilities activity was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1,2017 Additions Deletions June 30,2018 One Year
Certificates of participation $ 2028858 § - % (60,793) $ 1,968,065 § 62,144
Capital lease obligations 168,371 - (34,823) 133,548 44,368
Insurance claims payable 89,602 - (10,963) 78,639 26,849
Total $ 2286831 - _$ (106579 s 2,180,252 § 133,361
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT
B. Business-Type Activities, Continued
Certificates of Participation 2000 - Original Issue $1,429,800
On December 21, 2000, the City issued certificates of participation through the Guadalupe Financing

Authority which were purchased by the US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Utilities Service
(RUS), amounting to $1,429,800, in an agreement which included a grant of $875,200 for water and

of debt service, the City has pledged net water revenues for the payment of debt service. The certificates
of participation bear interest at 4.5% per annum, with principal and interest payments due semiannually
through August 1, 2041. At June 30, 2018, the principal balance outstanding was $1,081,240.

The annual debt service requirements on the Certificates of Participation-2000 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 28,000 $ 48,822 76,822
2020 30,000 47,527 77,527
2021 31,000 46,164 77,164
2022 32,000 44,734 76,734
2023 34,000 43,257 77,257
2024-2028 196,000 191,325 387,325
2029-2033 246,000 141,881 387,881
2034-2038 305,000 80,196 385,196
2039-2041 179,240 12,469 191,709
Total $ 1,081,240 $ 656,375 $ 1,737,615

Certificates of Participation 2005 - Original Issue $1,203,900

Per annum, with principal and interest payments due semiannually through July 28, 2035. At June 30,
2018, the principal balance outstanding was $885,762.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

B. Business-Type Activities, Continued

The annual debt service requirements on the Certificates of Participation-

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 34,144 3 37,237 % 71,381
2020 35,553 35,801 71,354
2021 37,019 34,307 71,326
2022 38,546 32,750 71,296
2023 40,135 31,130 71,265
2024-2028 226,925 128,904 355,829
2029-2033 277,754 77,105 354,859
2034-2035 196,749 16,676 213425
Total $ 886,825 ¢ 393910 $ 1,280,735

Capital Lease Obligations

minimum payments for business-type capital lease oblig;

ations were as follows:

For the Year
Ending June 30, Amount

2019 $ 44368

2020 44,368

2021 33,926

2022 10,886

Present value of minimum lease payments 133,548

Less current portion {44,368)

— "2000)

Long-term principal obligations $ 89,180
-=.=-===
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7. JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT
The City of Guadalupe participates in two joint ventures under joint powers agreements.

A. Central Coast WaterAuthority

The Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) is a joint powers authority organized in 1991 for the
purpose of providing the financing, construction, operation and maintenance of certain local (non-state
owned) facilities required to deliver water from the State Water Project to certain water purveyors and
users in Santa Barbara County. CCWA is composed of eight members, all of which are public agencies.
The Board of Directors is made up of one representative from each participating entity. Votes on the
Board are apportioned between the entities based upon each entity’s pro-rata share of the water
provided by the project.

Each participant is required to pay to CCWA an amount equal to its share of the tota] cost of “fixed
project costs” and certain other costs in the proportion established in the Water Supply Agreement. This
includes the participant’s share of payments to the State Department of Water Resources (DWR) under

Additional information and complete financial statements for the CCWA may be obtained by contacting
The Central Coast Water Authority at 255 Industria] Way, Buellton, CA 93427,

B. California Joint Powers Insurance Authority

The City is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA). CJPIA is composed of
over 100 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers agreement pursuant to
California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of CJPIA is to arrange and administer programs
for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for
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7. JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT, Continued

B. California Joint Powers Insurance Authority, Continued

Self-Insurance Program of C |PIA, Continued:

The total funding requirement for self-insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and pre-
funded through the annual contribution. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure
(payroll) and experience (claims) relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool. Additional
information regarding the cost allocation methodology is provided below.

Liability:

each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer.
(3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from the $30,000 to $750,000 for each occurrence
and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred
costs in excess of $750,000 up to the reinsurance attachment point of $5 million are distributed based on

Costs covered claims for subsidence losses are paid by reinsurance and excess insurance with a pooled
sub-limit of $25 million per occurrence. This $25 million subsidence sub-limit is composed of (a) $5
million retained with the pool’s SIR, (b) $10 million in reinsurance and (c) $10 million in excess
insurance. The excess insurance layer has a $10 million annual aggregate,

Workers’ Compensation:

total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from
$50,000 to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs
within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs in excess of $100,000 up to reinsurance attachment point of $2
million are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers. (5)
Costs of covered claims from $2 million up to statutory limits are paid under a reinsurance policy.
Protection is provided per statutory liability under California Workers’ Compensation Law.
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7. JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT, Continued

B. California Joint Powers Insurance Authority, Continued

Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $2 million. Coverage from $2 million to $5
million is purchased as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer’s Liability losses from $5 million to

Purchased Insurance under C[PIA:
Property Insurance: The City participates in the all-risk property protection program of CJPIA. This

Insurance Claim Payable:
St MACE Lilamm Payable:

The Authority has assessed a retrospective claims liability balance to Ppool members. The City’s share of
the liability is $140,710 at June 30, 2018. The lon -term liability applicable to governmental type and
business-type activities have been allocated accordingly.

At June 30, 2018, the aggregate future maturities of the insurance claim payable were as follows:

Forthe Year
Ending June 30, Governmental Business-Type Total
2019 21,095 26,849 § 47,944
2020 21,533 27,406 48,939
2021 19,442 24,385 43,827
Total $ 62,071 § 78,639 § 140,710

Additional information and complete financial statements for the CJPIA may be obtained by

contacting the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority at 8081 Moody Street, La Palma, CA 90623
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

A. Plan Descriptions

established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a

B. Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based
on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of
total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits, AlJ] members are eligible

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are Summarized as follows:

PEPRA PEPRA
Miscellaneous Safety Miscellaneous Safety

Prior to Prior to On or after On or after
Hire date Jan1,2013 Jan1,2013 Jan 1,2013 Jan1,2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @55 2.0% @55 2.0% @62 20% @57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirementage 55 55 62 57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible
compensation 2% 2% 2% 2%
Required employee contribution rates 6.896% 6.915% 6.250% 9.500%
Required employer contribution rates 8.921% 12.242% 6.533% 9.513%
Unfunded liability payment $ 80819 % 40,492 § 265 % 1,062
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

C. Contributions

The City’s contributions to the Plan for the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 were $305,064.
D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2018, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability of the Plan of $3,065,323.

Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.02989%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.03091%
—

Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00102%

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $406,500.
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continged

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions,
Continued

At June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
e
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 329,839 § -
Changes in assumptions 572,341 43,762
Differences between expected and actual experience - 20,850
Changes in employer's Proportion 68,741 92,434
Differences between the employer's contribution and the
employer's proportionate share of contributions 2,315 81,974
Net differences between Projected and actual earnings on
Plan investments 127,358 -
e -
Total $ 1,100,594 ¢ 239,020

$329,839 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be Tecognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30,
2019 $ 48,840
2020 356,594
2021 201,432
2022 (75,131)
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in
following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Projected Salary Increase
Mortality(l)
Post Retirement Benefit Increase

the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations were determined using the

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

7.15%

2.75%

Varies by entry age and service

Derived using CalPERS membership data for all funds
Contract COLA up t0 2.75% until purchasin & Power protection
allowance floor on purchasing power applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1) Net of pension plan administrative expenses.

The underlying mortality
valuation were based on

assumptions and all other actuaria] assumptions used in the June 30, 2016

i the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website,

F. Discount Rate

pension liability was 7.15% for the Plan. To determine
used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan,

CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different

- Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of
discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal
discount rate of 7.15 percent will be
(PERF). The stress test results are

presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

The long-term expected rate of return

block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued
FE. Discount Rate, Continued

In determining the long-term €xpected rate of return, CalPERS took into account bot short-term and
long-term market return €Xpectations as wel] 5 the expected pension fund cagh flows, Using historica]
returns of al] the funds’ asset classes, €xpected compoung returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a buﬂding—block approach. Using the expected
nominal returng for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits wag calculated for

The table below reflects the long-term expected rea] rate of return by asset clags, The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation, These rates of return are net of administrative expenses,

New
Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(p)
—cton —=-"Ya) — 70
Global Equity 47.00% 4.90% 5.38%
Globa] Fixed Income 19.00% 80.00% 2.27%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 60.00% 1.39%
Private Equjty 12.00% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.00% 2.80% 521%
Infrastructyre and Forestlang 3.00% 3.90% 536%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.40% -0.90%
—_—  <U0%
Total o 100.00%

(@) An €Xpected inflation of 2 5 % used for this Pperiod.
{b) An €Xpected inflation of 3 g % used for this period.
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued
F. Discount Rate, Continyed

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The followmg bresents the City’s Proportionate share of the net pensjon liability for the Plan, calculated

i nt rate for the Plan, as wel] a5 what the City’s Proportionate share of the net pension
liability woulg be if it were calculated using a discoynt rate that js I-percentage point lower or 1.
percentage point higher than the current rate;

1% Decrease 6.15%
Net Pensjon Liabih'ty $ 4,953,793
Current Discount Rate 7.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 3,065,323
1% Increase 8.15%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,510,382

G. Payable 1o the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2018 the City Teported a payable of $0 for outstanding amoyunt of contributiong to the
pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018.

9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Plan Description

The following Current and former employees were Covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB plan
as of the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation:

Active Employees 24
Inactive employees or beneficiaries Currently receiving benefitg - ;”:
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9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued

C. Contri butions
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calendar year 2018.
accordingly. The City also pays a 0.32%
and retirees, For the measurement perio
including $122,404 of pay-as-you
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4.00%
5.00%
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9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued
E. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Increase
(Decrease)

Total OPEB

Liability
—ny
Balance at June 30,2017

(Measurement date 06/30/2017) $ 424,124
Changes in the year:

Service cost 22,060
Interest 11,646
Benefit chan ges -
Investment €xperience -
Plan experience -
Assumption changes -
Contribution - employer (1) -
Expected Investment income -
Benefit payments 1) (206,667)

Administrative expenses -
= ——

Net changes (172,961)
_—

Balance at June 30,2018

(Measurement date 06/30/2018) $ 251,163

(1) Includes $122,404 of Pay-as-you-go contributions made
from sources outside the trust, Plus an impljcit subsidy
amount of $84,263 o benefit Payments from sources outside

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.62% 3.62% 4.62%
—_eh

Total OPEB Liability (Asset) $ 351435 g 251163 § 174905
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10.

11.

The following presents the total OPEB Liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability
would be if jt were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is l-percentage-point lower (4.00
percent) or 1-percenta &e point higher (6.00 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rate;

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
_

Total OPEB Liability (Asset) $ 164385 ¢ 251,163 ¢ 366,731

OPEB Expense

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $33,706.

CONTINGEN CIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigation

Bill provided that upon dissolution of redevelopment agency, either the City or another unit of
distributed to other units of state and local government. On January 9, 2012, the City Council elected to
Cy

become the Successor Agency for the former Redevelopment agen
of City Resolution No. 2 (2012).
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